
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

June 16, 2022 
 

Patrick S. Jordan, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Lisa Vogler, City Attorney 

 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, June 16, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Regular Meeting – June 2, 2022 
           Special Meeting – June 6, 2022 
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Public Hearing – DWRF Project Plan – Water Department. 

Explanation: A public hearing is required for the City to be able to qualify for the State Revolving Loan Money to be 
allocated to our planned upgrades at the Water Plant. 

 
2. Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 1267 - Appropriations Ordinance Amendment.  

Explanation:  A public hearing will be conducted on an amendment to the current Appropriations Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.  An amendment is needed to balance out over and under expenditures within various 
departmental budgets for the 2021-22 fiscal year. This action is mandated by State law and adjusts budget accounts 
to help ensure that no individual line items are overrun. 
 

3. Public Hearing – Notice of Improvements (Special Assessment Project) – 12’ Asphalt Paved Alley Located Between 
North 18th Street and North 19th Street and Between 6th Avenue North and 5th Avenue North – Public Works. 
Explanation:  The City of Escanaba received a petition from property owners requesting the City to construct a 12’ 
asphalt paved alley located between North 18th Street and North 19th Street and between 6th Avenue North and 5th 
Avenue North. On May 19, 2022, the City of  Escanaba held a Public Hearing on the proposed improvement. The City 
of Escanaba is now holding a Public Hearing on the proposed special assessed improvement project so that any 
comments or objections to the proposed alley assessments can be heard. Administration recommends approval of 
the special assessments. 
 

4. Public Hearing – Notice of Improvements (Special Assessment Project) – 14’ Asphalt Paved Alley Located Between 
Lake Shore Drive and Grand Avenue and between 17th Avenue South and 18th Avenue South – Public Works. 
Explanation:  The City of Escanaba received a petition from property owners requesting the City to construct a 14’ 
asphalt paved alley located between Lake Shore Drive and Grand Avenue and between 17th Avenue South and 18th 
Avenue South. On May 19, 2022, the City of Escanaba held a Public Hearing on the proposed improvement. The City 
of Escanaba is now holding a Public Hearing on the proposed special assessed improvement project so that any 
comments or objections to the proposed alley assessments can be heard. Administration recommends approval of 
the special assessments. 
 



Agenda – June 16, 2022 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Discussion – Commercial Marijuana in the City of Escanaba – Administration. 

Explanation: City Council and staff will continue discussion on Retail Marijuana presence in the City of Escanaba. 
 

2. Discussion – Progress Regarding Sale and Development of Jail and Chamber Sites – Administration. 
Explanation: Administration will update City Council on the progress regarding the sale and development of the Jail 
and Chamber properties.  
 

3. Discussion – Annual Review of City Manager Patrick Jordan and Evaluation. 
Explanation: City Council will discuss the next step in the evaluation process.  
 

 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. Approval – Resolution 22-05, SRF Project Plan Resolution – Water Department. 

Explanation: Following the public hearing the City must pass a resolution adopting a SRF Project Plan. Administration 
is seeking Council approval to adopt Resolution 22-05 – A Resolution Adopting a Final Project Plan Amendment for 
Water System Improvements and Designating an Authorized Project Representative. 
 

2. Approval - Annual Service Agreement - William Bonifas Fine Arts Center. 
Explanation: The William Bonifas Fine Arts Center is seeking Council approval of their 2022-23 Service Agreement in 
the amount of $5,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the Center will provide (6 to 8) exhibitions in the Alice 
Powers Gallery, a minimum (4) on-stage (or radio) plays, a minimum of (35) classes in the creative and visual arts, and 
workshops, which will be available to the citizens of Escanaba. Administration is recommending approval of the Service 
Agreement. This is a budgeted item. 
 

3. Approval – Resolution 22-04, Resolution of Support - Bonifas Arts Center - 2023 Music Mondays Summer Concerts 
- Administration. 
Explanation: The Bonifas Art Center is seeking Council approval of a resolution supporting their grant application to 
the Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs seeking funds for the "Music Mondays" Summer Concert Series. If 
approved, the City of Escanaba will serve as the Administrator for the funds. Administration is recommending 
approval. 
 

4. Approval – Insurance Renewal - Controller. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the 2022/23 property and liability insurance 
through MMRMA. 
 

5. Approval – Delta County Historical Society Agreement – City Manager. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the 2022/23 service agreement with the Delta 
County Historical Society.  This item is included in the 2022/23 Budget. 
 

6. Approval – Enhance Escanaba Agreement – City Manager. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the 2022/23 service agreement with the Enhance 
Escanaba. This item is included in the 2022/23 Budget. 
 

7. Approval – Curbing Bid – Engineering/Public Works. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval of the 2022 Curbing Bid from Bacco Construction 
Company, Inc. of Iron Mountain, MI, for the unit price of $18.10 per foot. The total estimate for curb is $63,893.00. 
 

8. Approval – General Service Agreement with C2AE for Engineering Services – Engineering/Public Works. 



Agenda – June 16, 2022 
 

Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval to contract with C2AE of Escanaba to provide engineering 
services on an as needed basis. Engineering services will be billed at an hourly rate as stated in the contract. 
 

9. Approval – ADA Ramp Construction – Engineering/Public Works. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the unit prices as quoted by Bacco Construction to 
complete the ADA sidewalk ramps on South 15th Street as part of their curbing contract. Bacco Construction quoted a 
total of $44,648.78 to complete sidewalk ramps on South 15th Street between 1st Avenue South and 5th Avenue South. 
 

10. Approval – Resolution 22-06 – Designated Street Administrator – Engineering/Public Works. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval of a Resolution for Designation of Street Administrator 
of Wendy Taavola, Interim City Engineer, as required by the Michigan Department of Transportation Public Act 51. 
 

11. Update – Street Paving – Engineering/Public Works. 
Explanation: The Engineering Department will update City Council on this year’s street paving schedule and prioritizing 
projects using the PASER rating system.  
 

12. Discussion – Update on Status of Ongoing Investigation – Public Safety. 
Explanation: Public Safety Detective will give an update on investigation ongoing since early 2020. 

 
APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       
ADJOURNMENT          

 
Respectfully Submitted  

 
 

Patrick S. Jordan  
City Manager 



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 
Thursday, June 2, 2022 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Pro Tem Moore at 7:02 p.m. in 
the Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler DuBord, Todd Flath, and 

Karen Moore 
 
Absent: Mayor Mark Ammel 
 
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Clerk Phil DeMay, City Attorney 

Vogler, Department Heads, media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to excuse Mayor 
Ammel’s absence.  
 
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from May 19, 2022, and Special Meeting minutes from May 26, 2022, 
as submitted. 

 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Moore moved New Business Item 8 closed session to the end of the 
meeting before Adjournment.  

 
Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the 
City Council Agenda as amended. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
UB-1 Public Hearing – Condemnation of structure located at 1607 North 20th Street 
– Code Compliance Department – Public Safety. 
 

Administration requested condemnation of the structure located at 1607 North 20th 
Street, which had been partially burned due to a lightning strike and appears to be 
abandoned. 



City Council Minutes  
June 2, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

This being a public hearing, Mayor Pro Tem Moore asked for public comment. 
 

Hearing no public comment, Mayor Pro Tem Moore then closed the public hearing. 
 
UB-1 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve the condemnation of the structure 
located at 1607 North 20th Street. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:  DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp  
Nays:  None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 

 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1(a) Virtual Presentation – Laura Genovich with Foster Swift on Recreational 
Marijuana – Administration. 
 

Laura Genovich with Foster Swift presented and participated in a discussion with 
Council/Administration on next steps in preparing for Recreational Marijuana in the 
City of Escanaba. 
 
Council member Flath exited the meeting at 7:17 p.m. 
Council member Flath re-entered the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 

 
NB-1(b) Approval – Engagement Letter with Laura Genovich with Foster Swift – 
Administration. 
 

Administration recommended City Council approval of a Letter of Engagement with 
Laura Genovich with Foster Swift for services facilitating introduction of Recreational 
Marijuana businesses as allowed under MRTMA, Michigan Recreation and Taxation 
of Marihuana Act. 
 
NB-1(b) Flath moved, DuBord seconded, to approve of a Letter of Engagement with 
Laura Genovich with Foster Swift for services facilitating introduction of Recreational 
Marijuana businesses as allowed under MRTMA, Michigan Recreation and Taxation 
of Marihuana Act. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp 
Nays: None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 



City Council Minutes  
June 2, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

3 

NB-2 Approval – Lease with the Delta County Central Dispatch Authority – 
Controller. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval of a lease with the Delta County 
Central Dispatch Authority. This lease is for the space occupied by the dispatch center 
at Escanaba Public Safety. 
 
NB-2 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve of a lease with the Delta 
County Central Dispatch Authority for the space occupied by the dispatch center at 
Escanaba Public Safety. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Flath, Moore 
Nays: None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
NB-3 Approval – Traffic Control Order (TCO) No. 1010 – Public Safety. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval of TCO No. 1010. Traffic Control Orders 
expire 90 days from the filing date unless approved by Council. The Traffic Control 
Order calls for the following: 

No. 1010 – The 100 block of North 16th Street be changed to a one-way street to 
alleviate traffic congestion at the Upper Elementary School. 
 

NB-3 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve of TCO No. 1010 – The 100 block 
of North 16th Street be changed to a one-way street to alleviate traffic congestion at 
the Upper Elementary School. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:  DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp  
Nays:  None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 

 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-4 Approval – Traffic Control Order (TCO) No. 1011 – Public Safety. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval of TCO No. 1011. Traffic Control Orders 
expire 90 days from the filing date unless approved by Council. The Traffic Control 
Order calls for the following: 

No. 1011 – Install two handicap parking stalls on the west side of South 5th Street 
in the last two parking spots closest to Ludington Street. 



City Council Minutes  
June 2, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

4 

NB-4 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve of TCO No. 1011 – Install two 
handicap parking stalls on the west side of South 5th Street in the last two parking 
spots closest to Ludington Street. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:  DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp  
Nays:  None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 

 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-5 Approval – Set a Public Hearing Date for Condemnation – Public Safety. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval to set a Public Hearing date for July 7, 
2022, to review the information for the possible condemnation, demolition and removal 
of the structure located at 1002 Stephenson Avenue which has been posted as unsafe 
to occupy due to its current condition by this office and for the remaining foundation 
and concrete slab located at 630 1st Avenue South. 
 
NB-5 (a) DuBord moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set a Public 
Hearing date for July 7, 2022, to review the information for the possible condemnation, 
demolition and removal of the structure located at 1002 Stephenson Avenue. 
 
NB-5 (b) Beauchamp moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set a 
Public Hearing date for July 7, 2022, to review the information for the possible 
condemnation, demolition and removal of concrete slab located at 630 1st Avenue 
South. 

 
 
NB-6 Approval – Professional Services – Cross Connection Inspections @ 
Commercial Accounts – Water. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval to retain and renew the services of 
HydroCorp, of Troy, MI to perform work as outlined in the attached proposal in a sum 
not to exceed $52,128.00 during the 22-23 fiscal year. 
 
NB-6 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve to retain and renew the services of 
HydroCorp, of Troy, MI to perform work as outlined in the attached proposal in a sum 
not to exceed $52,128.00 during the 22-23 fiscal year. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:  DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp  
Nays:  None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 
 



City Council Minutes  
June 2, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

5 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-7 Approval – CUPPAD – Davis Bacon Act Wage Review for LSLR Project – 
Water. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval to hire and retain the services of CUPPAD 
of Escanaba, MI to complete the work required as specified, at a cost not to exceed 
$7,215.00. 
 
NB-7 Flath moved, DuBord seconded, to approve to hire and retain the services of 
CUPPAD of Escanaba, MI to complete the work required as specified, at a cost not to 
exceed $7,215.00. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp 
Nays: None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES   
 

Manager Jordan, with Council Consensus made the following appointments: 
 

Rhonda Waters appointed to the Recreation Advisory Board, expiring June 1, 
2025; 

 
Robert Manninen appointed to the Traffic Safety Advisory Committee, expiring 
June 1, 2024. 

 
Council made the following appointments: 

 
Roy Webber appointed to the Planning Commission, expiring June 1, 2025. 
 
Christopher Renner appointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals, expiring June 1, 
2025. 

 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 

 
 



City Council Minutes  
June 2, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

6 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

• Kelli Van Ginhoven – discussed her experience with Escanaba and intention to run 
for a County Board seat.  

 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• Fun Run June 3, 2022, Downtown Escanaba. 

• June 15th at 9:00 a.m. at the Marketplace will be a celebration of the Enhance 
Escanaba project. 

 
 
The time being 8:26 p.m. DuBord moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY, the Council recessed. 
 
The time being 8:33 p.m. came back in session.  

 
 
NB-8 Closed Session – Foreclosure by Sale Property – HR Director/Treasurer 
 

Administration requested City Council go into a closed session, at the 
recommendation of the City Attorney, to update the City Council on the foreclosure 
sale on a property, which owes money to the  City. 
 
Beauchamp moved, Flath seconded, to go into Closed Session. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Beauchamp, Flath, DuBord, Moore  
Nays: None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The time was 8:34 p.m. 
 
Flath moved, Beauchamp seconded, to come back into Open Session. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, Beauchamp, DuBord, Moore  
Nays: None 
Absent: Mayor Ammel 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
The time was 8:54 p.m. 



City Council Minutes  
June 2, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

7 

No Council actions were taken during closed session.  
 
 
Hearing no further public comment Beauchamp moved, Flath seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted 
 

 
 

Phil DeMay     Approved: _________________________  
City Clerk       Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem  



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Special Council Meeting 

Monday, June 6, 2022 
 
Pursuant to a meeting notice posted on May 27, 2022, the meeting was called to order 
by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 9:00 a.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall 
located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Clerk Phil DeMay, and Department 

Heads. 
 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Escanaba City Charter requires the Council to pass electric, wastewater, water and 
solid waste utility rate ordinances on the first Monday of June, for the upcoming fiscal 
year 2022-23. 

 
PH-1a Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1263, the 
Electric Rate Ordinance. A 1.75 percent rate increase is being recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set electric utility rates for the next fiscal year. 
Administration recommended approval of the electric rates as provided. Council was 
asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance 
No. 1263. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Electric Rate Ordinance No. 1263. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
PH-1a “By Council Member Beauchamp, seconded by Council Member Moore; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1263, the Electric Rate Ordinance, given its second 



City Council Minutes  
June 6, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and it is hereby adopted, and that it be 
published in accordance with the requirements of State law and the City Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Beauchamp, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: DuBord 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1263, adopted by title: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE RATES TO BE CHARGED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR ELECTRIC ENERGY DEMAND AND AVAILABILITY OF 
SERVICE, TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS PROCESSED 
AFTER JUNE 30, 2022, AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER 
AMENDED BY THE COUNCIL.” 
 
Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 

 
 
PH-1b Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1264, the 
Wastewater Rate Ordinance.  A 25 percent rate increase is being recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set wastewater utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council 
was asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1264. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Wastewater Rate Ordinance No. 
1264. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
  
PH-1b “By Council Member Flath, seconded by Council Member Moore; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1264, the Wastewater Rate Ordinance, given its 
second reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and it is hereby adopted, and 
that it be published in accordance with the requirements of State law and the City 
Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: Beauchamp 
Absent: DuBord 
 



City Council Minutes  
June 6, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

3 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1264, adopted by title: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE CHARGES TO BE ASSESSED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT AND THE 
AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE 
BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 30, 2022, AND ALL BILLINGS 
THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY THE CITY COUNCIL.” 
  
Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 
 

 
PH-1c Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1265, the 
Water Rate Ordinance.  No rate increases are recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set water utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council was 
asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance 
No. 1265. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Water Rate Ordinance No. 1265. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
PH-1c “By Council Member Flath, seconded by Council Member  Beauchamp; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1265, the Water Rate Ordinance, given its second 
reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and it is hereby adopted, and that it be 
published in accordance with the requirements of State law and the City Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, Beauchamp, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: DuBord 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1265, adopted by title: 
 
“THE ORDINANCE FIXING THE RATES TO BE CHARGED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION, TREATMENT, AND AVAILABILITY TO 
BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 
30, 2022, AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY 
THE COUNCIL.” 
  
Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 



City Council Minutes  
June 6, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

4 

PH-1d Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1266, the 
Solid Waste, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter Ordinance.  No rate increases are 
recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set solid waste rates for the next fiscal year. Council was 
asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance 
No. 1266. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Solid Waste, Recycling, Yard Waste 
and Littering Ordinance No. 1266. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
PH-1d “By Council Member Flath, seconded by Council Member Moore; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1266, the Solid Waste, Recycling, Yard Waste and 
Littering Ordinance, given its second reading and public hearing at this meeting, be 
and it is hereby adopted, and that it be published in accordance with the requirements 
of State law and the City Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: DuBord 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1266, adopted by title: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14, FIXING THE CHARGES TO BE 
ASSESSED BY THE CITY OF ESCANABA FOR SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING, 
YARD WASTE AND LITTERING, TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE 
BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 30, 2022 AND ALL BILLINGS 
THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ESCANABA.” 
 
Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Approval – Purchase of Annual RECs – Electric. 
 

Michigan's Renewable Portfolio Standard requires all electric utilities to generate 15% 



City Council Minutes  
June 6, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

5 

of their retail electricity sales from renewable energy resources for the 2021 calendar 
year. We need to purchase 16,500 Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) to meet this 
requirement. Administration sought approval to purchase 16,500 RECs from the City 
of Norway for a total of $41,250 ($2.50/REC) 
 
At 9:06 a.m. Council member DuBord arrived at the meeting. 
 
NB-1 Beauchamp moved, Moore seconded, to approve to purchase 16,500 RECs 
from the City of Norway for a total of $41,250 ($2.50/REC). 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Beauchamp, Moore, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 
 

Hearing no further public comment Flath moved, and the Council adjourned at 9:08 
a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted 

 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: _____________________  
City Clerk        Mark Ammel, Mayor 





























 ORDINANCE NO. 1267 
 

"AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 1244, ENTITLED AN ORDINANCE TO 

MAKE APPROPRIATIONS AND CORRESPONDING REVENUES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2022." 

 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS:   

 

The total number of mills of ad valorem property taxes to be levied for fiscal year 2021/2022 is 17.00. 

 

CHAPTER I 

Section 101.  That there is hereby appropriated by the City of Escanaba to various departments and funds for 

specific purposes, the several amounts set forth in the following tabulation, to be expended in accordance with 

the budget as approved, except that the City Manager is hereby empowered to transfer appropriations between 

activities and objects of expenditures, subject to the limitation imposed by Chapter VIII, Section 8, of the City 

Charter.  The appropriations and revenues set forth are for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
                                                                                                                                                      

GENERAL FUND 
Revenues: 

   Taxes                                                   $5,473,925 

   Licenses and Permits                                         1,250 

   Intergovernmental                                        1,526,000 

   Charges for Services/Fines                                 307,700 

   Electric Utility Fund Contribution                      765,790 

   Transfer from Land Development Fund                       60,000 

   Transfer from DDA Fund          2,500    

   Transfer from Office Equipment Fund       39,200  

   Transfer from Sanitary Landfill Fund      270,000 

   Miscellaneous Revenues                                 108,200 

 Subtotal            $8,529,565 

   Transfer from Fund Balance            $774,814 

      Total General Fund Revenues                          $9,329,379 

  

Expenditures: 

   City Council                                               $29,432 

   City Manager                                               308,390 

   Elections                                                   24,780 

   City Controller                                            387,834 

   Bad Debt            13,000 

   Auditors                                                    20,990 

   Assessors                                         284,186 

   Attorneys                                                   95,200 

   Information Technology         41,895 

   City Clerk                                                 224,470 

   Human Resources                                             97,390 

   Bd. of Review                                                1,800 

   City Treasurer                                             271,500 

   Billing                                                   366,850 

   City Hall and Grounds                                      81,252 

   Civic Center                                             105,045 

   Community Promotional                                    25,550 

   Celebration Flags                                            9,590 

   Fourth of July                                           33,270 

   Public Safety                                            4,486,885 

   Community Preservation                                 130,932 

Zoning           128,832 

   Crossing Guards                                             46,650 

   Crosswalks            5,000 

   Planning Commission                                         33,800 

   Care of Trees and Shrubs                                  163,400 

   Sidewalks                                                   12,325 

   Engineers                                                  373,590 

   Street Lighting                                            170,000 

   Sanitary Landfill                                          270,000 

   Solid Waste Collection                                     474,895 

   Composting Activities                                       78,220 

   Snow Plowing for Garbage Collection                     19,855 

   Community Services                                          26,148 

   Recreation                                                 600,720 

   Parks                                                      288,070 

   Band                                                        43,310 

   Tourism Promotion                                           37,575 

   Boat Launches                                           13,220 

   Alley Maintenance           5,975 

   Transfer to Parking Maintenance Fund       18,000 

Transfer to Marina Fund          1,000 



Ordinance No 1267 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1267 Amend Appropriations 2021-22.docx 2 

   Transfer to Library Fund                                   450,000 

   Transfer to Grants Fund         50,000 

   Transfer to Escanaba Building Authority Fund             149,000 

   Insurance/Bonds                                            6,025 

      Sub-total                                   $10,505,851 

     Less: Overhead to Utilities                       1,176,472 

      Total General Fund Expenditures                      $9,329,379 

 

MAJOR STREET FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Shared Revenues                                   $1,375,000 

   State Grants               375,000 

   Interest Earnings          20,000 

    Sub-total            $1,770,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance        326,141 

      Total Major Street Fund Revenues                       $2,096,141 

     

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $746,141 

   Street Construction                                      1,350,000 

      Total Major Street Fund Expenditures            $2,096,141 

  

LOCAL STREET FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Shared Revenues                                  $465,000 

   Interest Earnings                                           12,000 

   Property Owner’s Share of SA         9,800 

   Transfer from Major Street Fund                                  0 

   Sub-total              $486,800 

   Transfer from Fund Balance        641,821 

      Total Local Street Fund Revenues                   $1,128,621 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenses                                        $528,621 

   Street Construction                                    600,000 

      Total Local Street Fund Expenditures            $1,128,621 

  

LIBRARY FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Funding                                                  $22,963 

   Federal Funding         108,500 

   Penal Fines Allocation                                     100,000 

   Fines and Fees                                              10,000 

   Interest Earnings                                             1,000 

   Transfer from General Fund        450,000 

 Sub-Total              $692,463 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                                  37,917 

     Total Library Fund Revenues                                $730,380 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenditures                                    $692,880 

      Total Library Fund Expenditures                            $692,880 

  

BEZOLD TRUST FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                          $3,500 

   Transfer from Fund Balance         16,500 

      Total Bezold Trust Fund Revenues                      $20,000 

  

Expenditures: 

   Qualifying Expenditures                                $20,000 

      Total Bezold Trust Fund Expenditures                 $20,000 

 

GRANTS FUND 
Revenues: 

   Grant Revenue                                                 $965,653 

   Transfer from Gas Retirement Fund       11,655 

 Sub-Total              $977,308 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                                 121,654 

     Total Grants Fund Revenues                              $1,098,962 

  

Expenditures: 

   Façade Grant                                        $97,454 

   Non-Motorized Pathway Grant         $1,000,000 

   Band Uniform Grant           1,508 

      Total Grants Fund Expenditures                          $1,098,962 



Ordinance No 1267 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1267 Amend Appropriations 2021-22.docx 3 

GAS RETIREMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                          $12,500 

 Sub-total          $12,500 

   Transfer from Fund Balance              0 

      Total Gas Retirement Fund Revenues                          $12,500 

  

Expenditures: 

   Transfer to Grants Fund        $11,655 

   Transfer to Local Street Fund                                   0 

      Total Gas Retirement Fund Expenditures                      $11,655 

  

SANITARY LANDFILL FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                    $317,000 

   Penalties on Collections                                     1,200 

   Interest Earnings                                              500 

 Sub-total              $318,700 

Transfer from Fund Balance              0 

      Total Sanitary Landfill Fund Revenues         $318,700 

  

Expenditures: 

   Transfer to General Fund                                  $270,000 

   Administrative Expense                                         150 

   City Wide Clean-Up               0 

     Total Sanitary Landfill Fund Expenditures                  $270,150 

 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) FUND 
Revenues: 

   TIF Tax Collections                                       $275,000 

   State Reimbursement of Lost PPT         1,200 

State Grants                0 

   Interest Earnings                                            3,000 

   Miscellaneous Income           3,500 

     Sub-Total                                                  $282,700 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                                  13,140 

     Total DDA Fund Revenues                                    $295,840 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenditures                                       $268,340 

   Transfer to General Fund          2,500 

   Transfer to Major Street Fund        25,000 

      Total DDA Fund Expenditures                               $295,840 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                           $4,000 

      Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Revenues                         $4,000 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Expense                                             $520 

      Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Expenditures               $520 

 

DELTA COUNTY CENTRAL DISPATCH AUTHORITY (DCCDA) FUND 
Revenues: 

   DC Central Dispatch Authority Contract          $925,360 

    Total DCCDA Fund Revenues                                        $925,360 

  

Expenditures: 

   Dispatching Operations                                         $925,360 

      Total DCCDA Fund Expenditures                             $925,360 

  

LAND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Property Owner’s Share of Special Assessments                     $470 

   Sale of Property         156,060 

   Interest Earnings                                           20,000 

      Sub-Total              $176,530 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                      62,030 

      Total Land Development Fund Revenues                       $238,560 

 

Expenditures: 

   Property Improvements                                      $11,500 

   Property Purchase              8,935 

   Professional Services         11,000 

   Transfer to General Fund            $160,000 



Ordinance No 1267 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1267 Amend Appropriations 2021-22.docx 4 

     Total Land Development Fund Expenditures                   $191,435 

 

PARKING MAINTENANCE FUND 
Revenues: 

   D.D.A. Fund Contractual                                    $18,000 

   Transfer from General Fund         55,440 

  Total Parking Maintenance Fund Revenues                     $73,440 

 

Expenditures: 

   D.D.A. Lot Expenditures                                    $48,000 

   City Lot Expenditures         25,440 

     Total Parking Maintenance Fund Expenditures          $73,440 

  

E.D.A. REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                       $1,500 

 Sub-Total           $1,500 

   Transfer from Fund Balance          2,500 

      Total E.D.A.R.L.F. Revenues                                  $4,000 

 

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Costs                                        $4,000 

     Total E.D.A.R.L.F. Expenditures                      $4,000 

 

U.D.A.G. REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                               $45,000 

      Total U.D.A.G.R.L.F. Revenues                                    $45,000 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Costs                                        $1,555 

     Total U.D.A.G.R.L.F. Expenditures                                 $1,555 

  

FARMERS HOME GRANT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                             $500 

      Total Farmers Home Grant Fund Revenues                         $500 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Costs                                          $120 

      Total Farmers Home Grant Fund Expenditures                     $120 

  

DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Local Forfeiture Proceeds                                   $1,000 

   Interest Earnings                                              500 

Total Drug Law Enforcement Fund Revenues                     $1,500 

  

Expenditures: 

   City Expenditures                                           $1,000 

      Total Drug Law Enforcement Fund Expenditures                 $1,000 

  

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   TIF Tax Collections                                        $55,800 

   Interest Earnings                                              300 

     Total Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Revenues                $56,100 

 

Expenditures: 

   Developer Reimbursements                                   $55,800 

    Total Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Expenditures            $55,800 

 

 

The following is provided for informational purposes only, as provided by Michigan 

P.A. 2 of 1968 

 

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                    $14,311,065 

   Rents                                                       49,775 

   Miscellaneous           75,000 

   Interest Earnings                                          198,330 

     Total Electric Fund Revenues                            $14,634,170 

  

 



Ordinance No 1267 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1267 Amend Appropriations 2021-22.docx 5 

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                     $11,833,086 

   Depreciation                                               844,875 

   Overhead to General Fund                                   687,992 

   Contribution to General Fund                               765,790 

     Total Electric Fund Expenses                            $14,131,743 

 

WATER UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                      $4,480,000 

   Federal Subsidy-Capital Improvement Bond Interest           46,800 

   Miscellaneous                65,300 

   Interest Earnings                                            8,000 

     Total Water Fund Revenues                                $4,600,100 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                      $2,231,495 

   Depreciation                                               545,000 

   Overhead to General Fund                                   235,255 

   Bond Interest Expense                                      175,000 

     Total Water Fund Expenses                                $3,186,750 

  

WASTEWATER UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                      $3,150,000 

Grant Revenue                0 

   Miscellaneous           11,250 

   Interest Earnings                                           20,000 

     Total Wastewater Fund Revenues                    $3,181,250 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                       $1,557,767 

   Depreciation                                                    336,150 

   Overhead to General Fund                                        225,501 

   Bond Interest Expense                                      111,000 

     Total Wastewater Fund Expenses                           $2,230,418 

 

ESCANABA BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Lease Payments-Transfer from General Fund                     $149,000 

   Rent Income-City Hall/Library       133,248 

   Miscellaneous            4,500 

   Interest Earnings                                            2,000 

     Total Escanaba Building Authority Fund Revenues                 $288,748 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $214,245 

   Interest Expense                                             8,335 

   Depreciation Expense                                       156,100 

     Total Escanaba Building Authority Fund Expenses                 $378,680 

  

MARINA FUND 
Revenues: 

   Fees and Concessions                                           $169,600 

   Interest Earnings                                            1,500 

   Contribution from General Fund         1,000 

      Total Marina Fund Revenues                                      $172,100 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $179,390 

   Interest Expense                                             5,580 

   Depreciation                                                69,940 

     Total Marina Fund Expenses                                      $254,910 

 

 

APPROVED:       APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________     _________________________ 

Lisa Vogler       Mark Ammel 

City Attorney       Mayor 

  

Date Approved:   (Month) (Date), 2022     ATTEST: 

Date Published:   (Month) (Date), 2022 

  



Ordinance No 1267 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1267 Amend Appropriations 2021-22.docx 6 

 _________________________ 

 Phil DeMay    

        City Clerk 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a Regular Meeting held on the (Date) day 
of (Month), 2022, and was published in the Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Escanaba on (Month) (Date), 2022, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting 
was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as 
required by said Act. 
 

 _________________________  

        Phil DeMay  

 City Clerk 





















(EQP 3530 REV 01/2015) 

 

 

Resolution 22-05 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PROJECT PLAN AMENDMENT 

FOR WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS AND 

DESIGNATING AN AUTHORIZED PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Escanaba, MI recognizes the need to make improvements to its existing water 

treatment and distribution system; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Escanaba, MI authorized C2AE of Escanaba, MI to prepare a Project Plan, 

which recommends the construction of water service replacement in lead-impacted service lines 

throughout the City of Escanaba, and water main replacements; and 

 

WHEREAS, said Project Plan was presented at a Public Hearing held on June 16, 2022 and all public 

comments have been considered and addressed; 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Escanaba, MI formally adopts said Project 

Plan and agrees to implement the selected alternative (Alternative #2, Replacement of Water Main, and 

Lead Impacted Services). 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Escanaba City Manager, a position currently held by Patrick 

Jordan, is designated as the authorized representative for all activities associated with the project 

referenced above, including the submittal of said Project Plan as the first step in applying to the State of 

Michigan for a Drinking Water Revolving Fund Loan to assist in the implementation of the selected 

alternative. 

 

Yeas: __________  

 

Nays: __________  

 

I certify that the above Resolution was adopted by Escanaba, MI City Council on June 16, 2022. 

 

BY: Patrick Jordan, City Manager           

 Name and Title (please print or type) 

 

 

 ______________________________________________________________________________ 

 Signature       Date 

 











 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 22-04 
 

Resolution in Support of a Grant Application to the 
Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs 

 
AT A MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN, HELD ON JUNE 16, 2022 

 
RESOLUTION - SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION TO THE MICHIGAN ARTS 

AND CULTURAL COUNCIL SEEKING MATCHING FUNDS FOR THE 
"MUSIC MONDAYS" SUMMER CONCERT SERIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escanaba, Michigan, does hereby find as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to support the cultural lives of area residents through opportunities to be 
exposed to new art and music; 
 
WHEREAS, the City has an excellent partner in the Bonifas Arts Center to successfully organize and 
promote community events, and promote cultural tourism and sponsor area musicians through public 
concerts; 
 
WHEREAS, The City will administer the grant funds, if awarded, as set forth in the application; 
 
WHEREAS, the City has a policy detailing equal opportunity provisions for job applicants and public 
accommodations and agrees to conform to the Assurances and Guidelines set forth in the application; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY PROCLAIMED by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, Michigan, 
that the grant application should be made to the Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs for the 
August 3, 2022 deadline. 
 

Ayes:   
Nays:  

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 

 



































AGREEMENT 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA 

AND 

THE DELTA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 

It is agreed the Delta County Historical Society will provide the following services for the citizens 
of the City of Escanaba.  Reasonable charges can be made for those activities designated with 
City Approval.  In 1985, the Delta County Historical Society began restoration work on the 
Escanaba Lighthouse, formerly occupied by the U. S. Coast Guard.  It is agreed the Delta County 
Historical Society will provide a Lighthouse Museum and Nautical Display and other exhibits 
that will be open to the public.   
 
His Delta County Historical Society is a 501c3 entity and agrees to comply with all applicable 
laws related to that corporate status. 
 
In consideration for these services, the City of Escanaba will pay to the Delta County Historical 
Society an amount not to exceed Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000) during the fiscal year July 1, 
2022, through June 30, 2023, for continued work and new exhibits at the museum and 
lighthouse.  The Delta County Historical Society will furnish to the City, through the City 
Manager, sufficient notice of all activities to be held at the Escanaba Lighthouse.  Sufficient 
copies should be forwarded to the City for distribution to the City Council, City Clerk and City 
Manager.  Sufficient notices of all activities will be sent to the local media well in advance of the 
date of the actual activity to be held.  The City of Escanaba will be acknowledged as a 
participant in this project. 
 
This is a contribution for services only and the City of Escanaba assumes to liability of/for the 
operations of Enhance Escanaba. 
 
 
This agreement in effective July 1, 2022, and will terminate on June 30, 2023. 
 
CITY OF ESCANABA     DELTA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Patrick S. Jordan, City Manager   It’s President 
 
 
 
____________________________ 





 

 

AGREEMENT 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA 

AND 

Enhance Escanaba 

It is agreed that Enhance Escanaba will operate as a nonprofit corporation with the sole 
purpose of initiating, designing, promoting, and funding beautification projects in public, 
private, and historical places in the City of Escanaba. 
 
Enhance Escanaba is a 501c3 entity and agrees to comply with all applicable laws related to that 
corporate status. 
 
In consideration for these initiatives, the City of Escanaba will pay to Enhance Escanaba an 
amount not to exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) during the fiscal year July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023, for projects fitting the above categories.  Enhance Escanaba will furnish 
to the City, through the City Manager, notice of all projects and will report to the City Council 
yearly, how these funds were spent.  The City of Escanaba will be acknowledged as a participant 
in this project.   
 
This is a contribution for services only and the City of Escanaba assumes to liability of/for the 
operations of Enhance Escanaba. 
 
This agreement in effective July 1, 2022 and will terminate on June 30, 2023. 
 
CITY OF ESCANABA     Enhance Escanaba 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Patrick S. Jordan, City Manager   It’s President 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Phil Demay, City Clerk 
 

 







Detail Abbreviations: C WR R W

Curb Walk New New ADA Surf Hand

Rem Rem Ramp Walk Tile Rem Patch

Street Quad (Lft) (Syd) (sft) (Sft) (Ea) (Syd) (Ton)

1st Ave So SW 14.00 12.53 122.20 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

SE 14.00 10.00 97.50 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

2nd Ave So NW 14.00 27.17 161.20 96.00 2.00 2.24 0.4

NE 14.00 32.66 159.25 147.00 2.00 2.24 0.4

SW 14.00 20.06 156.65 36.00 2.00 2.24 0.4

SE 14.00 11.40 111.15 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

3rd Ave So NW 14.00 11.94 116.35 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

NE 14.00 11.04 107.60 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

SW 14.00 17.67 172.25 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

SE 14.00 30.27 191.75 95.40 2.00 2.24 0.4

4th Ave So NW 14.00 13.40 130.65 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

NE 14.00 13.42 13.34 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

SW 14.00 31.99 197.60 105.60 2.00 2.24 0.4

SE 14.00 10.93 106.60 na 2.00 2.24 0.4

5th Ave So NW na na na na na na na

NE na na na na na na na

Total: 196.00 254.48 1,844.09 480.00 28.00 31.36 5.60

Terry Flower Page 1 5/17/2022

























MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

OF

SHEET

PLAN DATEF.H.W.A. APPROVAL

BUREAU OF HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT STANDARD PLAN FOR

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

CONCRETE CURB AND

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

CONCRETE CURB AND

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

CONCRETE CURB AND

R-30-G

ADJACENT TO CONCRETE BASE COURSE; OR ADJACENT TO HMA PAVEMENT:

JOINTS IN CURB OR CURB AND GUTTER NOT TIED TO CONCRETE PAVEMENT;

2 2

1
'
-
1
•
"
 
R

1
'
-
1
•
"
 
R

2
"
 

R

3"
 R

3"
 R

2
"
 

R

6
"
 

R

1'
-0

" 
R

1'
-0

" 
R

6
"
 

R

2
"
 

R

2
"
 

R

2"
 R

2"
 R

2
"
 

R

2
"
 

R

10'-0"

4'-0"  VERTICAL CURVE

1
"

C
U

R
B

H
E
I

G
H

T

JOINT FILLER

1" FIBER

AT  

„" TOOLED JOINT 

JOINTS IN CURB OR CURB AND GUTTER TIED TO JOINTED PAVEMENT

1" FIBER JOINT FILLER CONTRACTION JOINT

A

A

B

B

CONCRETE CURB,  CURB AND GUTTER ENDINGS

DETAIL D

B - B

STEEL

18" MAX.

6" MIN.

18" MAX.

6" MIN.STEEL

T

T

T

A - A

B - B

DETAIL B DETAIL C

B - B

A - A A - A A - A

DETAIL E

B - B

A - A

B - B

DETAIL F

 

    ADJACENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT AS SPECIFIED ON STANDARD PLAN R-41-SERIES. 

D.  A SYMBOL (B) JOINT  SHALL BE PLACED BETWEEN CURB OR CURB AND GUTTER AND

 

    IN PAVEMENT.  

C.  PLACE  CONTRACTION JOINTS  OPPOSITE  ALL TRANSVERSE  CONTRACTION JOINTS

 

B.  PLACE •" ISOLATION JOINT AT CATCH BASINS PER STANDARD PLAN R-37-SERIES.

 

    IN PAVEMENT.

A.  PLACE 1"  FIBER JOINT FILLER  OPPOSITE ALL  TRANSVERSE EXPANSION JOINTS

 

D.  PLACE CONTRACTION JOINTS AT 40' MAXIMUM INTERVALS.

 

C.  PLACE •" ISOLATION JOINT AT CATCH BASINS PER STANDARD PLAN R-37-SERIES.

  

B.  PLACE 1" FIBER JOINT FILLER AT SPRING POINTS OF INTERSECTING STREETS.

 

A.  PLACE 1" FIBER JOINT FILLER AT 400' MAXIMUM INTERVALS.

ITEM FOR THE CURB OR CURB AND GUTTER.

ALL JOINTS FOR CURB OR CURB AND GUTTER  ARE INCLUDED IN THE PAY 

PLAN R-31-SERIES.

WHEN CURB AND GUTTER  IS CAST INTEGRALLY,  SEE CURRENT STANDARD 

 

FORMING.

OF  GUTTER PAN  MAY HAVE A  MAXIMUM  •"  BATTER  TO FACILITATE 

SLOPE AS BOTTOM OF PAVEMENT.    BACK OF CURB AND  VERTICAL EDGE 

BOTTOM  SLOPE OF  CURB AND GUTTER  STRUCTURE  MAY  BE THE  SAME 

 

ON THIS STANDARD PLAN.

JOINTS DETAILED  ON THE PLANS  SHALL SUPERSEDE  THOSE SPECIFIED 

 

CURB AND GUTTER.

JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AT RIGHT ANGLES  TO THE EDGE OF CONCRETE 

 

FEET OF THE ADJACENT CURB DETAIL.

CONCRETE  CURB AND GUTTER  ENDINGS  WILL BE PAID  FOR IN LINEAR 

 

OF THE GUTTER PAN OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

CURB AND GUTTER RADII  SHALL BE  DIMENSIONED  TO THE FRONT EDGE 

 

NOTES:

2-6-20149-30-2014





1211 Ludington St.
Escanaba, MI 49829

www.c2ae.com

June 2, 2022

Mr. Patrick Jordon
City Manager
City of Escanaba
PO Box 948
Escanaba, MI 49829

Re: Proposal for Professional Services: General Engineering Services - 2022

Dear Mr. Jordan,

In response to our recent discussions with your engineering staff, we are pleased to submit for consideration this
agreement to provide general engineering services to the City of Escanaba. We propose to provide general engineering
services in accordance with the following parameters:

• General engineering services may include preliminary feasibility studies, project close out tasks, funding
applications, preparation of design, cost estimates, construction related field services, preparation of bid
documents, site plan/plat reviews and other services via subconsultant, as specifically authorized by the City.

• Engineering services will be provided for each request as authorized by the City of Escanaba within a mutually
agreed budget. Reimbursement for engineering services will be made in accordance with the current C2AE
schedule of rates and charges at the time of the services. Today’s rate schedule is attached for your reference.

• We will not charge for requests which can be handled by a quick check of our files or references. However, when
the time required to provide the requested input involves lengthy research, we will charge the time to the
general services account.

• Invoices will be presented on a monthly basis and are due upon receipt.

• This agreement shall remain in effect beginning June 2, 2022 and ending upon 30 days’ written notice from
either party.

Contract provisions consistent with those previously negotiated between the City of Escanaba and C2AE are attached
and included in this agreement. If the terms and conditions as stated are acceptable, please countersign and return one
(1) copy to our office. Please do not hesitate to contact us should you have any questions or concerns, or if you need
additional information.

Sincerely, Accepted:
C2AE City of Escanaba

Darren Pionk, PE
Project Manager Patrick Jordan, City Manager

Date:



Classification	 Description	 Hourly	Billing	Rate	Range

A8 Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect  $200 - $290
A7  Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect  $180 - $255
A6  Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect $155 - $225
A5  Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect $140 - $200
A4 Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect $125 - $175
A3  Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect  $110 - $155
A2  Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect  $95 - $135
A1  Engineer/Architect/Landscape Architect $80 - $110

(T)A-4 Architectural/Engineering Designer  $115 - $170
(T)A-3 Architectural/Engineering Designer  $100 - $145
(T)A-2 Architectural/Engineering Designer  $85 - $120
(T)A-1 Architectural/Engineering Designer  $65 - $95

B3	 Resident	Project	Representative/Survey	Technician	 $100	-	$130
B2	 Resident	Project	Representative/Survey	Technician	 $70	-	$110
B1	 Resident	Project	Representative/Survey	Technician	 $45	-	$75

C3	 Administrative	 $60	-	$90
C2	 Administrative	 $50	-	$70
C1	 Administrative	 $35	-	$55

(1)		The	foregoing	rates	include	employee	fringe	benefits,	computer	time,	overhead,	other	indirect	costs	and	profit.	Legal	
proceedings,	including	but	not	limited	to	case	preparation,	depositions,	interrogatories,	court	appearances,	will	be	billed	
at	the	above	hourly	rates	plus	ten	(10)	percent.

(2)		Rates	are	effective	through	December	31,	2022.

(3)		Expenses	will	be	invoiced	at	cost	plus	ten	(10)	percent	administrative	fee.	

(4)		All	invoices	are	due	upon	receipt.

(5)		This	information	is	confidential	and	is	not	to	be	duplicated,	used	or	disclosed	in	whole	or	in	part,	for	any	purpose	
other	than	for	which	it	has	been	submitted	without	written	authorization	by	one	of	the	firm’s	principals.

HOURLY	BILLING	RATES



2

Standard Contract Provisions
General Services

The parties to this agreement, Capital Consultants, Inc., a Michigan Corporation doing business as C2AE in the State of Michigan,
hereinafter called the A|E CONSULTANT and the City of Escanaba, Michigan, hereinafter called the OWNER, hereby agree to the
following conditions:

A. Limit of Scope:  The services provided by the A|E CONSULTANT may include, but not be limited to, the preparation of reports,
studies, preliminary designs and opinions of probable construction costs, site plan and utility reviews, attendance at
administrative and public meetings and other general services requested by the OWNER.

Separate agreements will be entered into for design and construction services and for information technology services on a
project-specific basis.

B. Standard of Care: In providing services under this Agreement, the A|E CONSULTANT will endeavor to perform in a manner
consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing
under similar circumstances. Upon notice to the A|E CONSULTANT and by mutual agreement between the parties, the A|E
CONSULTANT will without additional compensation, correct those services not meeting such a standard.

C. Opinions of Probable Construction Cost: In providing opinions of probable construction cost, the OWNER understands that
the A|E CONSULTANT has no control over the cost or availability of labor, equipment or materials, or over market conditions
or the Contractor’s method of pricing, and that the A|E CONSULTANT’s opinions of probable construction costs are made on
the basis of the A|E CONSULTANT’s professional judgment and experience. The A|E CONSULTANT makes no warranty,
express or implied, that the bids or the negotiated cost of the work will not vary from the A|E CONSULTANT’s opinion of
probable construction cost.

D. Schedule for Rendering Services: The A|E CONSULTANT shall prepare and submit for OWNER approval a schedule for the
performance of the A|E CONSULTANT’s services. This schedule shall include reasonable allowances for review and approval
times required by the OWNER, performance of services by the OWNER’s consultants, and review and approval times required
by public authorities having jurisdiction over the project. This schedule shall be equitably adjusted as the project progresses,
allowing for changes in scope, character or size of the project requested by the OWNER, or for delays or other causes beyond
the A|E CONSULTANT’s reasonable control.

E. Ownership of Reports, Drawings and Other Materials:  The OWNER agrees that all reports, drawings, letters, work sheets,
plans, preliminary material tables, supportive data, documents and other materials produced by the A|E CONSULTANT in the
course of and for the purpose of meeting this contract are the property of the A|E CONSULTANT, and shall remain in the
possession of the A|E CONSULTANT. The OWNER shall have access to the above named material during normal business
hours of the A|E CONSULTANT during and after completion of this contract. The OWNER may obtain copies of any of the
above named material. Copies of electronic media may be obtained by the OWNER via execution of this Agreement. (See
Alteration and Reuse of CAD Information provision of this Agreement.)

F. Alteration and Reuse of CAD Information:  Because computer aided design/drafting (CAD) information stored in electronic
form can be modified by other parties, intentionally or otherwise, without notice or indication of said modifications, the A|E
CONSULTANT reserves the right to remove all indications of its ownership and/or involvement in the material from each
electronic medium not held in its possession. The OWNER may retain copies of the work performed by the A|E CONSULTANT
in CAD form. Copies shall be for information and used by the OWNER for the specific purpose for which the A|E CONSULTANT
was engaged. Said material shall not be used by the OWNER, or transferred to any other party, for use in other projects,
additions to the current project, or any other purpose for which the material was not strictly intended without the A|E
CONSULTANT’s express written permission. Any unauthorized modification or reuse of the materials shall be at the OWNER’s
sole risk, and the OWNER agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the A|E CONSULTANT harmless, from all claims, injuries,
damages, losses, expenses, and attorney’s fees arising out of the unauthorized modification of these materials.

G. Payment Terms: Invoices will be submitted by the A|E CONSULTANT monthly, are due upon presentation and shall be
considered past due if not paid within thirty (30) calendar days of the due date.



3

Standard Contract Provisions
General Services

H. Disputed Invoices: If the OWNER objects to any portion of an invoice, the OWNER shall so notify the A|E CONSULTANT in
writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the invoice. The OWNER shall identify in writing the specific cause of the
disagreement and the amount in dispute and shall pay that portion of the invoice not in dispute in accordance with other
payment terms of this Agreement. Any dispute over invoiced amounts due which cannot be resolved within ten (10) calendar
days after presentation of invoice by direct negotiation between the parties shall be resolved within thirty (30) calendar days
in accordance with the Dispute Resolution provision of this Agreement. Interest as stated above shall be paid by the OWNER
on all disputed invoice amounts that are subsequently resolved in the A|E CONSULTANT’s favor and shall be calculated on the
unpaid balance from the due date of the invoice.

I. Abandonment of Work:  If any work is abandoned or suspended, the A|E CONSULTANT shall be paid for services performed
prior to receipt of written notice from the OWNER of abandonment or suspension.

J. Errors and Omissions Insurance:  The A|E CONSULTANT maintains an errors and omissions insurance policy as part of normal
business practice. The OWNER agrees to limit the A|E CONSULTANT's liability to the OWNER and to all Construction
Contractors and Subcontractors on the project due to the A|E CONSULTANT's negligent acts, errors, or omissions, such that
the total aggregate liability of the A|E CONSULTANT to all those named shall not exceed C2AE fee.

K. Indemnification: The A|E CONSULTANT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the
OWNER against damages, liabilities and costs arising from the negligent acts of the A|E CONSULTANT in the performance of
professional services under this Agreement, to the extent that the A|E CONSULTANT is responsible for such damages,
liabilities and costs on a comparative basis of fault and responsibility between the A|E CONSULTANT and the OWNER. The A|E
CONSULTANT shall not be obligated to indemnify the OWNER for the OWNER’s own negligence.

L. Dispute Resolution:  The OWNER agrees that all claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the parties arising
out of or relating to this Agreement or breach thereof first shall be submitted for nonbinding mediation to any one of the
following, as agreed to by the parties:  American Arbitration Association, American Intermediation Service, Americord,
Dispute Resolution, Inc., Endispute, or Judicate. Any party hereto may initiate mediation within the time allowed for filing per
State law and the parties hereto agree to fully cooperate and participate in good faith to resolve the dispute(s). The cost of
mediation shall be shared equally by the parties hereto.

If mediation fails to resolve the claim or dispute, the matter shall be submitted to a court of competent jurisdiction.











Michigan Department 
of Transportation 
2012 (07/09) 

RESOLUTION FOR DESIGNATION  

OF STREET ADMINISTRATOR 
This information is required by Act 51, P.A. 1951 as amended. Failure  

to supply this information will result in funds being withheld. 

MAIL TO: Michigan Department of Transportation, Bureau of Finance 
and Administration, P.O. Box 30050, Lansing, MI 48909. 
or Fax to: 517-241-2589 

NOTE: Indicate, if possible, where Street Administrator can usually be reached during normal  

working hours, if different than City or Village Office. List any other office held by the Administrator. 

Councilperson or Commissioner 

offered the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

Whereas, Section 13(9) of Act 51, Public Acts of 1951 provided that each incorporated city and village to which 

funds are returned under the provisions of this section, that, "the responsibility for street improvements, 

maintenance, and traffic operations work, and the development, construction, or repair of off-street parking facilities 

and construction or repair of street lighting shall be coordinated by a single administrator to be designated by the 

governing body who shall be responsible for and shall represent the municipality in transactions with the State 

Transportation Department pursuant to this 
act."  

Therefore, be it resolved, that this Honorable Body designate ___________________________________________   

 ______________________________________________ as the single Street Administrator for the City or Village of 

 _____________________________________________ in all transactions with the State Transportation Department 

as provided in Section 13 of the Act. 

Supported by the Councilperson or Commissioner 

Yeas 

Nays _________________________________________________________________________________________________   

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution made and adopted at a regular meeting 

of the governing body of this municipality on the  _________________________________________________day of 

 
CITY OR VILLAGE CLERK (SIGNATURE) EMAIL ADDRESS DATE 

STREET ADMINISTRATOR (SIGNATURE) EMAIL ADDRESS DATE 

ADDRESS OF CITY OR VILLAGE OFFICE P.O.BOX 

CITY OR VILLAGE ZIP CODE PHONE NUMBER 

 

wtaavola
Wendy Taavola






	06.16.2022 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm06.02.2022
	cm06.06.2022 special
	PH-1
	PH-1
	210093_Public_Hearing_Slides
	210093_Public_Hearing_Report

	PH-2
	PH-2
	Amendment Narrative
	ord1267 Amend Appropriations 2021-22

	PH-3
	MX-M363N_20220606_113303
	PH-3
	PH-3
	Special Assessment Petitions



	PH-4
	MX-M363N_20220606_113318
	PH-4

	UB-1
	UB-2
	NB-1
	NB-1
	210093_220608_EscanabaDWRF_Resolution

	NB-2
	MX-M363N_20220609_105455
	NB-2
	MX-M363N_20220606_161338


	NB-3
	NB-3
	MX-M363N_20220609_110003
	NB-3
	22-04 Music Mondays


	MX-M363N_20220610_095111

	NB-4
	MX-M363N_20220609_110241

	NB-5
	MX-M363N_20220609_111021
	NB-5
	Historical Society Agreement (2)


	NB-6
	MX-M363N_20220609_111854
	NB-6
	Enhance Escanaba Agreement (1)


	NB-7
	NB-7

	NB-8
	NB-8
	Agenda Item - C2AEs
	2022ScheduleBillingRates


	NB-9
	NB-9

	NB-10
	NB-10

	NB-11
	NB-12
	NB-13



